IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH, Attorney General of the State of Florida,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 82,287

THE NATIONAL LEAGUE OF PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL CLUBS and WILLIAM D. WHITE, as President,

Respondents.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FOR THE FIFTH DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH, ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

JEROME W. HOFFMAN ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLA. BAR #0258830 LOUIS HUBENER ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLA. BAR #0140084

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS ANTITRUST SECTION PL-01, THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-1050 904/488-9105

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

In this brief, Petitioner Robert A. Butterworth, the Attorney General of the State of Florida, will be referred to as "Attorney General." Respondent National League of Professional Baseball Clubs and William D. White, will be referred to as "Respondent".

References to the trial court record on appeal will be designated in accordance with the Index to Appeal with page numbers preceded by "R".

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

A. The Case

This matter comes before the Court as a certified question from the Fifth District Court of Appeal affirming a final order by the Circuit Court of the Ninth Judicial Circuit, granting Respondent's Petition to Set Aside Civil Investigative Demands and denying the Attorney General's Cross Motion to Compel. The antitrust civil investigative demands at issue ("CID's") were directed to the National League of Professional Baseball ("National League") and its President, William D. White ("White") who were Petitioners in the trial court and are Respondents here. (R. 84)

The Attorney General of Florida has been given broad powers by the Florida Legislature to investigate and enforce both the federal and Florida antitrust laws. In aid of the Attorney General's broad enforcement responsibilities, the Legislature has also invested the Attorney General with the authority to serve a Civil Investigative Demand upon any person who he has "reason to believe" may be in possession, custody or control of any documentary material or information" relevant to a violation of the federal or state antitrust laws. Section 542.28, Florida Statutes. A CID may request documents, answers to written interrogatories or oral testimony under oath. Section 542.28(1), Florida Statutes.

The CID's in question were served upon Respondents on November 12, 1992. (R. 84) They sought certain documents from

The National League and testimony from Mr. White, as the League President, to assist the Attorney General in determining whether the Respondents and/or others had violated the antitrust laws by working to defeat a Tampa Bay investors' group bid to purchase the San Francisco Giants baseball club. (R. 84-85)

The National League and White then filed their Petition to Set Aside Civil Investigative Demands. (R. 83-93) The Attorney General filed a response and a Cross Motion to Compel compliance with the CIDs. The National League and Mr. White contended that any conduct in which they engaged was completely exempt from the antitrust laws and that no antitrust action by the Attorney General could ever succeed. Therefore, they contended, no investigation of their activities could take place and thus the CIDs should be set aside. (R. 85-86)

A hearing was held on December 31, 1992. (R. 1-82) Judge Stroker's Order granting Respondent's Petition to Set Aside Civil Investigative Demands and denying the Attorney General's Motion to Compel was filed on January 4, 1993. (R. 167-170) The trial Court's order found that "Decisions concerning ownership and location of baseball franchise clearly fall within the ambit of baseball's exemption." (R. 169)

The Attorney General appealed to the Fifth District Court of Appeal which affirmed certifying to this Court the following question:

"Does the antitrust exemption for baseball recognized by the United States Supreme Court in <u>Federal Baseball Club of</u>

Baltimore, Inc. v. National League of Professional Baseball

Clubs, 259 U.S. 200, 42 S.Ct. 465, 66 L.Ed. 898 (1922) and its

progeny exempt all decisions involving the sale and location of
baseball franchises from federal and Florida antitrust law?"

B. The Facts1

On June 2, 1992, voters in San Jose, California rejected a bond issue to help finance construction of a new baseball stadium in the San Francisco Bay area to replace Candlestick Park, the home of the San Francisco Giants baseball club. It was the fourth time that voters in San Francisco Bay area had voted down an effort to build a new baseball stadium for the Giants to replace cold, windy Candlestick which is now 30 years-old.

On June 11, 1992, then Commissioner of Baseball, Fay
Vincent, met with San Francisco Giants owner Robert Lurie and
gave him specific permission to explore options for the sale or
relocation of the San Francisco Giants franchise. At that time
Vincent publicly stated that the Giants met his relocation
criteria because the franchise had been losing money in San

^{&#}x27;Since the trial court held no evidentiary hearing on the facts and indeed quashed the CIDs before any facts could be gathered, these facts are taken from the Attorney General's Cross Motion to Compel Compliance and Memorandum in Opposition to Petition to Set Aside Civil Investigative Demands. (R. 94-98) It is the State's position that the trial court abused its discretion in not allowing the State to develop the facts of this case pursuant to its CID authority prior to ruling that the baseball exemption applied. Without fully developed facts, it was premature, if not impossible, for the trial court to find that the baseball exemption applied to this case. See Piazza V. Major League Baseball, et al., Case No. CIV 92-7173 (U.S.D.C. E.D. Pa. August 4, 1993) at pp. 52-54, Appendix.

Francisco, because the voters had indicated that baseball was no longer important, and because there was no immediate prospect of improvement.

Over the next several weeks, Giants owner Robert Lurie engaged in negotiations with a group of investors from the Tampa Bay area who wished to purchase the Giants franchise and move it to Florida to play in the St. Petersburg Suncoast Dome. On August 6, 1992, Mr. Lurie signed a letter of intent with the Tampa Bay investors to sell the franchise subject to the approval of Major League Baseball.

During the weeks that followed, Respondent White and others, both inside Major League Baseball and outside Major League Baseball, engaged in an extraordinary campaign to undercut the Tampa offer and to develop a competing offer from investors who would keep the franchise in San Francisco. Numerous other potential investors were contacted, some of whom refused to invest after reviewing the Giants' financial situation. Ultimately, with the help of officials from the City and County of San Francisco, a group of investors was put together.

In contravention of their own stated intentions, policies and procedures, Mr. White, other baseball officials, and certain National League owners worked in secret during the period from August, 1992 through October, 1992 to help formulate and refine this competing offer from San Francisco investors and to delay formal consideration of the Tampa offer until the competing offer could be formalized.

As San Francisco Mayor Frank Jordan testified before the United States Senate Subcommittee on antitrust monopolies and business rights, "without the [National] League's intervention, we would not have been permitted to submit a competing offer . . ." Hearings on "Baseball's Antitrust Immunity" before Subcommittee on Antitrust Monopolies and Business Rights of the Senate Committee on the Judiciary, 102d Cong. 2d Session (Dec. 10, 1992).

On November 10, 1992, the baseball owners met in Scottsdale, Arizona and voted by secret vote against approval of the sale of the Giants to the Tampa Bay investors despite the fact that the Ownership Committee had previously approved the Tampa Bay owners as buyers.

On November 21, 1992, Robert Lurie signed a contract to sell the Giants to the group of San Francisco investors for \$100 million or \$15 million less than had been offered by the Tampa Bay investors.

This was the seventh time in recent years that Tampa Bay had been frustrated in its attempts to secure a Major League Baseball franchise.

It was apparent to the Attorney General that there was a potential antitrust violation inasmuch as it appeared as though some persons within baseball had conspired outside the formal process of review and approval with persons outside of the

business of baseball to deny Tampa Bay a baseball franchise.

Accordingly, the Attorney General issued CIDs to further investigate these potentially unlawful activities.

II. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The certified question should be answered in the negative. The antitrust exemption for baseball was created by the United States Supreme Court in the Federal Baseball Club of Baltimore, Inc. v. National League of Professional Baseball Clubs, et al., 259 U.S. 200 (1922) decision in 1922 which involved a challenge to the so-called reserve clause and its effect on a competing baseball league. The Court ruled in that case that professional baseball was not involved in interstate commerce and that it was therefore exempt from the federal antitrust laws. Since that case, the Supreme Court has twice upheld the exemption (both times involving reserve clause cases) on the grounds of stare decisis, even though the Court has itself admitted that the rationale of the Federal Baseball decision is wrong.

The Supreme Court has repeatedly held that antitrust exemptions must be narrowly construed. The Supreme Court has never applied the baseball antitrust exemption to any activity other than to the reserve clause and under the rule of stare decisis, the exemption should not be given application to activities other than the reserve clause.

Even applying the exemption more broadly to "the business of baseball" as did the trial court, the conduct which the Attorney General seeks to investigate is not exempt. The Attorney General does not seek to investigate the owners for their formal decision not to approve the sale of the Giants to the Tampa investors. Instead, he seeks to investigate the conduct of certain owners

and league officials leading up to the league vote. No court has ever defined what is included in "the business of baseball."

There are, however, hundreds of formal rules, regulations and guidelines previously drafted, adopted and followed by owners and league officials governing every aspect of baseball's operations including ownership transfers. Nowhere in those hundreds of rules is there anything which would authorize or approve the conduct which the Attorney General seeks to investigate. Because the conduct under investigation took place outside the formal rules of baseball and without authorization or approval, it cannot be the "business of baseball" and is therefore not exempt.

III. ARGUMENT

ISSUE: DECISIONS CONCERNING THE OWNERSHIP AND LOCATION OF BASEBALL FRANCHISES ARE NOT EXEMPT FROM THE ANTITRUST LAWS.

A. The Trial Court Erred in Finding That Baseball's Antitrust Exemption Applies to the Activity the Attorney General Seeks to Investigate.

The CIDs in question in this case were issued pursuant to the Florida Antitrust Act, particularly §542.28 Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1992), as part of an investigation to ascertain:

whether there is, has been or may be a violation of

15 U.S.C. Sections 1 or 2, Section 542.18, Florida Statutes; Section 542.19, Florida Statutes

by conduct, activities or proposed action of the following nature:

A combination or conspiracy in restraint of trade in connection with the sale and purchase of the San Francisco Giants baseball franchise.

(R. 84-85)

Respondents contend and the trial court so ruled, (R. 169) that the conduct the Attorney General seeks to investigate is exempt from the antitrust laws; therefore, the Court held that no investigation of their activities can take place and the CIDs should be set aside. (R. 169-170)

The trial court held that one area of business activity that has clearly and consistently been considered exempt is the "matter of the structure of the league." (R. 169)

The composition of the leagues, that is, where professional baseball is played and with whom, is a fundamental consideration of professional baseball and

the heart of its business activity. Decisions concerning ownership and location of baseball franchises clearly fall within the ambit of baseball's antitrust exemption.

(R. 169)

Contrary to the trial court's opinion, the Attorney General contends that decisions concerning the ownership and location of franchises are not covered by baseball's limited antitrust exemption.

In contrast to what Respondents would have this Court believe, baseball's antitrust exemption is, in fact, very narrow. No decision of the U.S. Supreme Court dealing with baseball has ever applied the exemption to any aspect of the business of baseball other than the reserve clause and certainly no court has ever held that the activities of baseball owners not directly related to the sale or transfer of a franchise, outside the formal approval process, are exempt from application the antitrust laws.

1. Baseball's Antitrust Exemption is Limited to the Reserve Clause.

The exemption from the federal antitrust law enjoyed by professional baseball is based on three Supreme Court decisions; Federal Baseball Club of Baltimore, Inc. v. National League of Professional Baseball Clubs, et al., 259 U.S. 200 (1922); Toolson v. New York Yankees, 346 U.S. 356 (1953) and Flood v. Kuhn, 407 U.S. 258 (1972). In Federal Baseball, the plaintiff refused to sign an agreement between the two major leagues and found itself without any clubs to play, the rest of its league having either

disbanded or joined the other two leagues. It sued the defendant major leagues for conspiring to monopolize the baseball business through the reserve clause system which required players to contract with their teams for one year and for the succeeding season.

The Court concluded that the federal antitrust laws did not apply to the dispute because the business of putting on baseball exhibitions was not interstate commerce. As Justice Holmes put it:

The business is giving exhibitions of baseball, which are purely state affairs. It is true that in order to attain for these exhibitions the great popularity that they have achieved, competitions must be arranged between clubs from different cities and States. But the fact that in order to give the exhibitions the Leagues must induce free persons to cross state lines and must arrange and pay for their doing so is not enough to change the character of the business. According to the distinction insisted upon in Hooper v. California, 155 U.S. 648, 655, 15 Sup. Ct. 207, 39 L. Ed. 297, the transport is a mere incident, not the essential thing. That to which it is incident, the exhibition, although made for money would not be called trade or commerce in the commonly accepted use of those words. As it is put by the defendant, personal efforts, not related to production, is not a subject of commerce. That which in its consummation is not commerce does not become commerce among the States because the transportation that we have mentioned takes place. To repeat the illustrations given by the Court below, a firm of lawyers sending out a member to argue a case, or the Chautaugua lecture bureau sending out lecturers, does not engage in such commerce because the lawyer or lecturer goes to another State.

If we are right the plaintiff's business is to be described in the same way and the restrictions by contract that prevented the plaintiff from getting players to break their bargains and the other conduct charged against the defendants were not an interference with commerce among the States.

259 U.S. at 208-209, 42 S.Ct. at 466.

Respondents contend that, "Federal Baseball was not a case about the reserve clause. In that seminal decision, the issue was whether the major leagues could be found liable under the antitrust laws for refusing to admit a franchise owned by the plaintiff, the owner of a team in a competing league, into their league" (R. 136).

The Respondents' contention is just plain wrong. The opinion of the Circuit Court of Appeals in that case, National League of Professional Baseball Clubs v. Federal Baseball Clubs of Baltimore, Inc., 269 F. 681 (D.C. Cir. 1920), contains a thorough recitation of the facts which clearly show that the case was not about a jilted franchise excluded from the league, but rather it was a suit aimed directly at the reserve clause by a franchise which had refused to become part of the National League. As the circuit court in Federal Baseball explained:

The [Federal] league continued in existence, with more or less success, until December 1915 when an agreement called the "Peace Agreement" was entered into between it, the National League, and the American League of Professional Baseball Clubs. This agreement resulted in the dissolution of the Federal League and all of its constituent clubs, save the appellee. The latter refused to become a party to the agreement, but as there were none of its league clubs left after the dissolution with which to compete, it ceased to operate. Respondent, asserting that the disbandment of the league and the consequent injury to it were due to acts of the appellants done in violation of Section 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act, instituted the action.

269 F. at 682 (emphasis supplied).

The court went on to state that:

Generally speaking, every player was required to contract with his club that he would serve it for one

year, and would enter into a new contract "for the succeeding season at a salary to be determined by the parties to such contract. The quoted part is spoken of as the "reserve clause," and it is found, in effect, in the contracts of the minor league players, as well as in those of the major league players It is provided in the rules adopted by the leagues and in the National Agreement that, if a player violates the reserve clause, is guilty of "contract-jumping," he shall be punished by being treated as ineligible to serve in any club of the leagues until he has been formally reinstated, and a list of such ineligible The <u>reserve</u> players is kept by the leagues clause and the publication of the ineligible lists, together with other restrictive provisions, had the effect of deterring players from violating their contracts, and hence the Federal Leaque and its constituent clubs, of which the appellee was one, were unable to obtain players who had contracts with the appellants; in other words, these things had the intended effect, viz. of preventing players from disregarding their obligations. On these provisions, all having for their purpose the preservation by each club of its necessary quota, and no more, of players, rests of the gravamen of appellee's case.

269 F. at 687-88 (emphasis supplied).

Thus, <u>Federal Baseball</u> was a case purely and simply about the reserve clause and its impact upon potential competition, as were both the <u>Toolson</u> and <u>Flood</u> cases, in which the Supreme Court, though rejecting the rationale of <u>Federal Baseball's</u>

decision, upheld baseball's antitrust exemption on the basis of stare decisis.²

The importance of this point cannot be over-emphasized. Since the antitrust exemption for Major League Baseball is anomalous and rests solely upon stare decisis, it must be given a strict and narrow interpretation. See, Union Labor Life

Insurance Co. v. Pireno, 458 U.S. 199, 126 (1982); U.S. v. First
City National Bank, 386 U.S. 361, 368 (1967); California v.

Federal Power Commission, 369 U.S. 482, 485 (1962). Indeed, the U.S. Supreme Court has itself illustrated its intent to narrowly construe the antitrust exemption for baseball by denying it to other sports such as football, basketball and boxing. See

Radovich v. National Football League, 352 U.S. 445 (1957);

Haywood v. National Basketball Ass'n, 401 U.S. 1204 (1971); U.S.
International Boxing Club, 348 U.S. 236 (1955). Thus, any interpretation of the baseball antitrust exemption which extends

²In <u>Toolson</u>, Yankee pitcher George Toolson claimed that enforcement of the reserve clause by placing his name on the ineligibility list, effectively denied him his means of livelihood. 346 U.S. at 362-363, n. 10 (Burton J., dissenting). In a <u>per curiam</u> decision, the Court upheld the antitrust exemption established in <u>Federal Baseball</u> on the basis of <u>stare decisis</u> "without re-examination of the underlying issues." 346 U.S. at 357.

In <u>Flood</u>, Cardinals' outfielder Curt Flood objected that the reserve clause allowed him to be traded to the Philadelphia Phillies without consent or even consultation. Although the Court ruled in direct contradiction of the original premise of the exemption in <u>Federal Baseball</u>, that "professional baseball is a business and it is engaged in interstate commerce," the Court nonetheless upheld the dismissal of Flood's suit. The only rationale was that, even though baseball's antitrust exemption is aberrational, "it is an established one" entitled to the benefit of <u>stare decisis</u>. <u>Flood</u>, 407 U.S. at 282.

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