D #7

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SID J. WHITE

NOV 19 1993

OLERK, SUPREME COURS

Chief Deputy Clerk

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH, ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

Case No. 82,287

vs.

District Court of Appeal, 5th District - No. 93-69

THE NATIONAL LEAGUE OF PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL CLUBS, and WILLIAM D. WHITE, as President,

Respondents.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF

Gregory A. Presnell
Florida Bar No.: 100525
Kathryn B. Nixon
Florida Bar No.: 813060
AKERMAN, SENTERFITT & EIDSON, P.A.
255 South Orange Avenue
10th Floor - Firstate Tower
Post Office Box 231
Orlando, Florida 32802
(407) 843-7860

and

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Since the Supreme Court's decision in Federal Baseball Club v. National League of Professional Baseball Clubs, 259 U.S. 200, 42 S. Ct. 465, 66 L. Ed. 898 (1922), it has been settled that the business of baseball is exempt from the antitrust laws. In the 70 years since the Federal Baseball decision, the Supreme Court in Toolson v. New York Yankees, Inc., 346 U.S. 356, 74 S. Ct. 78, 98 L. Ed. 64, reh'g denied, 346 U.S. 917, 74 S. Ct. 271, 98 L. Ed. 412 (1953), and again in Flood v. Kuhn, 407 U.S. 258, 92 S. Ct. 2099, 32 L. Ed. 2d 728 (1972), confirmed the holding of Federal Baseball that the antitrust laws do not apply to the business of baseball. More particularly, these cases, as well as a number of other federal and state cases, have specifically recognized that the purchase, sale, admission to the league, and location of baseball franchises are central to the "business of baseball" and fall securely within the baseball exemption.

Petitioner has argued that the exemption cannot be invoked here either because the exemption is supposedly limited to baseball's "reserve clause," or because the exemption covers only those practices reduced to written rules and regulations. These arguments of the Attorney General are illogical, unsupported by the case law or other authority, and inconsistent with his prior admissions. Baseball's antitrust exemption applies to the <u>business</u> of baseball, and precedent does not

support the limitation of that exemption solely to the reserve clause or to conduct codified in written regulations.

Finally, it is apparent that when activities are exempt from the antitrust laws and therefore cannot give rise to a violation of those laws, the Florida Attorney General is not empowered to investigate. Because the CIDs served by the Attorney General upon the Respondents were issued as part of an investigation concerning the "sale and purchase of the San Francisco Giants baseball franchise" (R. 87-93) -- an area clearly exempt from the antitrust laws -- the CIDs were properly set aside and the judgment of the Fifth District Court of Appeal should be affirmed.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

DECISIONS ON THE SALE AND LOCATION OF BASEBALL FRANCHISES ARE EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL ANTITRUST LAW.

During the nearly one hundred years that baseball has developed and expanded, the United States Supreme Court has on at least six occasions, beginning in 1922, dealt explicitly with the question presented here -- whether baseball is subject to the federal antitrust laws.² Each time, the Court's conclusion has been the same: "Congress had no intention of including the business of baseball within the scope of the federal antitrust laws." Flood v. Kuhn, 407 U.S. 258, 285, 92 S. Ct. 2099, 32 L. Ed. 2d 728 (1972) (quoting Toolson v. New York Yankees, Inc., 346 U.S. 356, 357, 74 S. Ct. 78, 98 L. Ed. 64, reh'g denied, 346 U.S. 917, 74 S. Ct. 271, 98 L. Ed. 412 (1953)).

As this unbroken line of precedent continued, the Court increasingly noted the significant reliance and <u>stare decisis</u> considerations which grew out of its earlier decisions and provided the rationale for the later ones. It noted as well the

Flood v. Kuhn, 407 U.S. 258, 92 S. Ct. 2099, 32 L. Ed. 2d 728 (1972); Radovich v. National Federal League, 352 U.S. 445, 450-52, 77 S. Ct. 390, 1 L. Ed. 2d 456, reh'g denied, 353 U.S. 931, 77 S. Ct. 716, 1 L. Ed. 2d 724 (1957); United States v. International Boxing Club, 348 U.S. 236, 242, 75 S. Ct. 259, 99 L. Ed. 290 (1955); United States v. Shubert, 348 U.S. 222, 229-30, 75 S. Ct. 277, 99 L. Ed. 279 (1955); Toolson v. New York Yankees, Inc., 346 U.S. 356, 74 S. Ct. 78, 98 L. Ed. 64, reh'g denied, 346 U.S. 917, 74 S. Ct. 271, 98 L. Ed. 412 (1953); Federal Baseball Club v. National League of Professional Baseball Clubs, 259 U.S. 200, 42 S. Ct. 465, 66 L. Ed. 898 (1922).

spate of litigation that would likely ensue and the burden that would be placed upon baseball if the business practices that baseball had developed over time were suddenly exposed to antitrust attack. In 1957, the Supreme Court offered the following rationale for its continued adherence to Federal Baseball, 259 U.S. 200, 42 S. Ct. 465, 66 L. Ed. 898 (1922), the case which had originally established baseball's antitrust exemption:

Vast efforts had gone into the development and organization of baseball since that [Federal Baseball] decision and enormous capital had been invested in reliance on its permanence. Congress had chosen to make no change. All this, combined with the flood of litigation that would follow its repudiation, the harassment that would ensue, and the retroactive effect of such a decision, led the Court to the practical result that it should sustain the unequivocal line of authority reaching over many years.

Radovich v. National Football League, 352 U.S. 445, 450-51, 77 S. Ct. 390, 1 L. Ed. 2d 456, reh'g denied, 353 U.S. 931, 77 S. Ct. 716, 1 L. Ed. 2d 724 (1957).

This line of cases reached its culmination in <u>Flood</u>, where the Supreme Court again reaffirmed baseball's antitrust exemption on the basis noted in <u>Radovich</u>. <u>Flood</u> also recognized the exemption as a considered accommodation to the special issues facing baseball, stating that the baseball exemption "rests on a recognition and an acceptance of baseball's unique characteristics and needs." 407 U.S. at 282.

The exemption created, confirmed, and reconfirmed by the Supreme Court is addressed, quite simply, to the business of

baseball: "In Federal Baseball [citation omitted] this Court held that the business of providing public baseball games for profit ... was not within the scope of the federal antitrust laws." Toolson, 346 U.S. at 356-57. Thirty years after Federal Baseball, the Toolson Court confirmed the business-wide nature of the exemption, on grounds of stare decisis, principally because "[t]he business has thus been left for thirty years to develop, on the understanding that it was not subject to existing antitrust legislation." Toolson, 346 U.S. at 357. Finally, in Flood, without re-examining the issues, the Court "repeat[ed]" the basis for the exemption first set forth in Federal Baseball and reiterated in Toolson, that "Congress had no intention of including the business of baseball within the scope of the federal antitrust laws." Flood, 407 U.S. at 285.

Besides the three baseball decisions, three other

Supreme Court decisions demonstrate that the exemption from the antitrust laws afforded to baseball by Federal Baseball and

Toolson was intended to extend to the business of baseball, and not merely to one aspect of it. In United States v. Shubert, 348

U.S. 222, 75 S. Ct. 277, 99 L. Ed. 279 (1955), the Court explained that in Federal Baseball, the Court "was dealing with the business of baseball and nothing else." Shubert, 348 U.S. at 228. In United States v. International Boxing Club, 348 U.S. 236, 75 S. Ct. 259, 99 L. Ed. 290 (1955), the Court held that Toolson applied to the business of baseball and did not extend to

"other businesses merely because of the circumstances that they are also based on the performance of local exhibitions."

International Boxing Club, 348 U.S. at 242. Finally, in its decision holding the antitrust laws applicable to the business of professional football, the Supreme Court made the scope of the baseball exemption quite clear, explaining that "we now specifically limit the rule there established [in Federal Baseball and Toolson] to the facts there involved, i.e., the business of organized professional baseball." Radovich, 352 U.S. at 451.

The lower courts have had no difficulty in understanding the breadth of the baseball exemption as set forth in this unbroken string of Supreme Court decisions. For example, in Charles O. Finley & Co. v. Kuhn, 569 F.2d 527 (7th Cir.), cert. denied, 439 U.S. 876, 99 S. Ct. 214, 58 L. Ed. 2d 190 (1978), the United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit held that baseball's antitrust exemption covered an alleged conspiracy to eliminate the Oakland franchise from baseball. In so holding, the court focused on and rejected the very argument presented by the Attorney General here, that the exemption is somehow limited to baseball's reserve clause or system -- a term used to describe the system by which teams retain rights to their players beyond the terms of the players' contracts:

The Supreme Court has held three times that the "business of baseball" is exempt from federal antitrust laws

Despite the two references in the <u>Flood</u> case to the reserve system, it appears clear from the entire opinions in the three baseball cases, as well as from <u>Radovich</u>, that the Supreme Court intended to exempt the business of baseball, not any particular facet of that business, from the federal antitrust laws.

Finley, 569 F.2d at 541.

Numerous courts have repeatedly applied the baseball exemption to various types of baseball business activities beyond the reserve clause. See Professional Baseball Schools & Clubs. Inc. v. Kuhn, No. 80-1274 Civ-T-H (M.D. Fla. Jan. 29, 1982), aff'd, 693 F.2d 1085 (11th Cir. 1982) (per curiam) (exemption covered, among other things, "player assignment system and franchise location system"); Portland Baseball Club, Inc. v. Kuhn, 368 F. Supp. 1004 (D. Or. 1971), aff'd, 491 F.2d 1101 (9th Cir. 1974) (per curiam) (exemption covered, among other things, league realignment and territorial rights); Salerno v. American League of Professional Baseball Clubs, 310 F. Supp. 729 (S.D.N.Y. 1969), <u>aff'd</u>, 429 F.2d 1003 (2d Cir. 1970) (per curiam) (exemption covered discharge of umpires), cert. denied, 400 U.S. 1001, 91 S. Ct. 462, 27 L. Ed. 2d 452 (1971); Portland Baseball Club v. Baltimore Baseball Club, Inc., 282 F.2d 680 (9th Cir. 1960); Charles O. Finley & Co. v. Kuhn, No. 76 Civ. 2358 (N.D. Ill. Sept. 7, 1976), aff'd, 569 F.2d 527 (7th Cir.), cert. denied, 439 U.S. 876, 99 S. Ct. 214, 58 L. Ed. 2d 190 (1978);

Moore v. National Ass'n of Professional Baseball Clubs, No. C78-351 (N.D. Ohio filed July 7, 1976) (exemption covered baseball's relations with umpires); State v. Milwaukee Braves, Inc., 31 Wis. 2d 699, 144 N.W.2d 1 (exemption covered relocation of franchise and league membership), cert. denied, 385 U.S. 990, 87 S. Ct. 598, 17 L. Ed. 2d 451 (1966), reh'g denied, 385 U.S. 1044, 87 S. Ct. 770, 17 L. Ed. 2d 689 (1967).

These cases demonstrate that the sale, purchase and location of baseball franchises are activities that are central to the business of baseball and fall squarely within baseball's exemption from the antitrust laws. State v. Milwaukee Braves, Inc., is particularly illuminating in this regard. There, the State of Wisconsin sought to prevent a National League franchise located in that state from moving to Atlanta, Georgia unless an expansion team was located in Milwaukee. After reviewing Federal Baseball and Toolson, the Wisconsin Supreme Court stated that:

it does seem clear that the exemption at least covers the agreements and rules which provide for the structure of the organization and the decisions which are necessary steps in maintaining it. The type of decision involved in this case, in essence, whether to admit a new member in order to replace an existing member which desired to move to a new area, appears to be so much an incident of league operation as to fall within the exemption.

144 N.W.2d at 15.

The applicability of the antitrust exemption to franchise location decisions has been expressly recognized by at

least two federal courts as well. In <u>Portland Baseball Club</u>, <u>Inc. v. Kuhn</u>, 368 F. Supp. 1004 (D. Or. 1971), <u>aff'd</u>, 491 F.2d 1101 (9th Cir. 1974), a former minor league owner objected to a major league franchise being located in his territory. The court dismissed the antitrust claims, citing baseball's long established antitrust exemption as controlling. In <u>Professional Baseball Schools & Clubs</u>, <u>Inc. v. Kuhn</u>, 693 F.2d 1085, 1086 (11th Cir. 1982), the Eleventh Circuit affirmed the determination of Judge Hodges of the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida that a federal antitrust challenge by a minor league franchise holder to, among other things, the "franchise location system" should be dismissed in view of baseball's antitrust exemption.

In this case, upon review of the relevant law, Judge Stroker reached the only conclusion consistent with these authorities -- that "the sale and purchase of the San Francisco Giants baseball franchise" was exempt from the federal antitrust laws. Specifically, Judge Stroker concluded:

[I]t is the business of baseball which is exempt [from the antitrust laws]. The exemption protects business activities which are directly related to the unique needs and characteristics of professional baseball. One area of business activity which has clearly and consistently been considered exempt is the matter of the structure of the league. The composition of the leagues, that is, where professional baseball is played and with whom, is a fundamental consideration of professional baseball and at the heart of its business activity. Decisions concerning ownership and location of baseball franchises

clearly fall within the ambit of baseball's antitrust exemption.

(R. 169)

In this appeal from the Fifth District Court of Appeal's affirmance of Judge Stroker's decision, the Attorney General advances two principal arguments as to why the baseball exemption should not apply to the sale of a franchise. First, the Attorney General argues that the exemption is limited to activities involving the reserve clause. Second, and alternatively, the Attorney General argues that the exemption covers only those activities that are specifically authorized by an officially promulgated guideline, rule or regulation of baseball. Both arguments, as shown below, are without merit.

A. Baseball's Antitrust Exemption Cannot Be Construed As Limited To Activities Involving The Reserve Clause.

The Attorney General's argument that baseball's exemption is limited to the reserve system is insupportable. It is contradicted by the broad language of the several controlling Supreme Court decisions, the facts on which those decisions were based, an overwhelming body of case law, and the uniform views of Congressmen, responsible Justice Department officials and others that the business of baseball, not one particular aspect of it, is exempt from the antitrust laws.

1. The Supreme Court's broad language and the facts of the cases it decided demonstrate that the exemption is not limited to the reserve system.

The Supreme Court could hardly have been more explicit in defining the exemption in the broad manner it did. but twice it has held that the authority of Federal Baseball remains intact insofar "as that decision determines that Congress had no intention of including the business of baseball within the scope of the federal antitrust laws." Flood, 407 U.S. at 285; Toolson, 346 U.S. at 357. Despite this broad language and its reiteration in several other Supreme Court cases (see pp. 8-11 supra), the Attorney General urges this court to reformulate these holdings and restrict them to the particular issues on which they were supposedly based. The Attorney General goes on to argue that the Supreme Court cases dealing with the baseball exemption, especially the seminal Federal Baseball case, concerned "purely and simply" the reserve clause, a point that the Attorney General contends "cannot be over-emphasized." (Petitioner's Initial Brief at 14-15). The Attorney General's "point," however, is flatly wrong.

The plaintiff in <u>Federal Baseball</u> was not a player, complaining of a conspiracy to restrict the avenues of his employment; rather the plaintiff was a club owner, the sole survivor of the competing Federal League, alleging that a conspiracy of the American and National League clubs had denied plaintiff's club the opportunity to compete. The plaintiff

contended that the Major League clubs had engaged in a conspiracy to "wreck and destroy" plaintiff's business and that of the Federal League through various allegedly wrongful actions. It was in response to the allegations of this conspiracy that the Supreme Court, speaking unanimously through Mr. Justice Holmes, first held that professional baseball is not within the scope of the federal antitrust laws.

The Attorney General's argument that the <u>Federal</u>

<u>Baseball</u> suit was aimed at the reserve clause appears to be based on the discussion of the underlying facts by the Court of Appeals in the decision eventually reviewed by the Supreme Court.

<u>Federal Baseball v. National League</u>, 269 F. 681 (D.C. Cir. 1920).

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